MEMORANDUM OF REVIEW


 MARCH  2001

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS/CONTRACT/NEW WORK/SA

FOR A-E CONTRACTS

TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


CONTRACT FILE CONTENT


Is the AF Form 3019, AFMC Forms 295 and 298 properly prepared, signed by the PCO and dated?
AFFARS 5304.803

Good Business Practice





Is the file properly tabbed, fastened and consistent with the AF Form 3019, or AFMC Forms 295 and 298?
Good Business Practice





Are the originals or authenticated memoranda in the file, arranged chronologically, with most recent on top?
DFARS 204.802










1
PURCHASE REQUEST OR PROCUREMENT DIRECTIVE


Is the PR properly prepared and signed?
AFMCFARS 5332.702-90





Is procurement directive in file (PAR, CAR, CCBD, PAD, CCAR) and consistent with PR?
FAR 4.803(a)(1)





Does the contractual instrument cover all PR/PAR requirements?
Good Business Practice


 


Does the PR cover all funding requirements to the Gov't  estimate?
FAR 32.702

AFFARS 5332.790 &

AFMCFARS 5332.702-90





Does the file contain an estimate of the proper price level or value of the supplies or services to be purchased?
FAR 36.605




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


Is the total A-E contract amount (fee) limited to no more than 6% of the predetermined estimated construction cost of the particular project (Title I/type B efforts)?  The 6% limit does not apply to Title II and OTHER A-E services, including technical field investigations and surveys (type A efforts).

AFI 32-1023, para 3.3





Does the contract file contain the Civil Engineer's estimate of cost for constructing the facility or the work to be performed as described in the SOW, along with an estimate of applicable A-E costs if $100,000 or more?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.3

FAR 36.605(a)





If the estimated value of the A-E contract exceeds $500,000, has the selection of the winning firm been approved by HQ AFMC & HQ USAF?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.4

DFARS 236.602-4 




2
ACQUISITION PLAN


Does the file contain an approved written AP for efforts greater than $5,000,000?
FAR 7.105

DARS 207.103 & 207.105

AFFARS 5307.103 & 5307.105 

AFMCFARS 5307.104-90





Is all AP documentation current?  If revised, have all approval authorities agreed to the changes via an AP amendment?
AFFARS 5307.104-90(d)




3
SOURCE LIST


If a competitive acquisition, does the source list contain at least three firms that are considered to be the most highly qualified?
FAR 36.602-3(d) and

36.602-4(b)





If the A-E contract is to be awarded under Section 8a of the Small Business Act, has the SBA been asked to provide a list of at least three qualified 8a firms for evaluation?  If three 8a firms are not available, has the SBA been asked to provide other A-E firms that are disadvantaged businesses?
AFFARS 5336.690(a)

AFI 32-1023, para 3.8.2




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

4
SMALL BUSINESS COORDINATION RECORD


Does the file contain a signed DD 2579 for all acquisitions exceeding $25,000?
AFFARS 5319.501(c)





If an indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity (IDIQ) A-E contract is set-aside for small business, is the total for all orders limited to $85,000?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.4 and 3.8





If the A-E contract is $85,000 or less, has it been set-aside for small business?  See DFARS 219.1005 for restriction on most A-E efforts under $85,000.
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.4 and 3.8

DFARS 219.1005

DFARS 236.601




5
SYNOPSIS RECORD


Was a notice of intent to contract for all A-E services (Notice of Contract Action) published in the CBD, including phases and options?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.7.2

FAR 5.101(a)(2); 5.205(d)(1);

36.601-1; 







Does the procurement synopsis allow at least the minimum response time of 30 days?
FAR 5.203(c)





If an indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity (IDIQ) type of contract will be employed, did the synopsis describe not only the type of work but also the total amount of work anticipated?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.7.2.1





When using an IDIQ contract, has the initial increment work order or delivery order been described in the synopsis and been made a part of the "basic" contract award?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.7.2.2





Does the CBD synopsis reflect the significant evaluation factors to be used in selecting the A-E contractor, along with the relative order of importance thereof?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.6.5.2




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


If A-E Services for Military Construction are estimated to exceed $500,000, has Congress been notified 21 days before any obligations?
DFARS 236.601




7
DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS --


AUTHORIZATION FOR USE


Does the file contain documentation justifying contract type if other than Firm Fixed Price?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.5

FAR 1.704, 1.707, 16.102(d), 16.203-3, 16.205-3

FAR 16.301-3, 16.403-1(c), 

16.503(d), 16.601(c)







If a definitive statement of work is not possible due to the nature of the work and a cost type contract must be used, has the approval of the Deputy Under Secretary of Defense (Environmental Security)  for Installations been obtained on any contract estimated to exceed $25,000?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.3.5






8
OTHER DETERMINATIONS/APPROVALS


 If the A-E services are for other than Title I and Title II and they exceed $300,000, has approval been obtained from SAF/MII prior to initiating the procurement?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.6.3





FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS


Has acquisition been reviewed to determine if the Service Contract Act applies?
FAR 22.10

FAR 22.1003-3/4

FAR 37.107





Has the PCO analyzed the planned acquisition to identify any potential conflict of interest?  If potential exists, has the PCO included appropriate provisions/clauses in the solicitation/contract?
FAR 9.504;

AFI 32-1023, para 3.7.2

AFMCFARS 5309.5





If  Cost Accounting Standards (CAS) apply, has the contract been assigned to a Contract Administration Office (CAO) for the CAS part only?
FAR 42.301




12
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL OR LETTER REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL/QUOTATION AND MODIFICATIONS THEREOF


Does the file contain a copy of the solicitation?
FAR 4.803(a)(8)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


For an IDIQ A-E contract, has (contract price) of individual work orders or delivery orders been limited to $299,000?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.7.2.4

AFFARS 5336.691(a)





If this is an A-E, IDIQ contract, is the basic limited to one year in length plus four one- year options?  Is the contract value limited to $750,000 for any year or option period.
AFFARS 5336.691(b)&(f)





Has the PCO advised the A-E contractor that no construction contract can be awarded to the firm that designed the project?
FAR 36.606(c), 36.209





Has clause 52.236-22 "Design within Funding Limitations" been incorporated and the construction funding limitation been inserted into subpara. (c)?
FAR 36.609-1(b)&(c)





Has clause 52.236.23 "Responsibility of the Architect-Engineer Contractor" been incorporated into all fixed price A-E contracts?
FAR 36.609-2(b)





Have clauses 52.236-24 "Work Oversight in Architect-Engineer Contracts" and 52.236-25 "Requirements for Registration of Designers" been incorporated into FFP A-E contracts?
FAR 36.609-3 and 36.609-4





Under indefinite-delivery orders, does the contract SCHEDULE identify names of the activity or activities authorized to issue orders?
FAR 16.505(a)(5)




16
UNSUCCESSFUL PROPOSAL AND ALL CORRESPONDENCE WITH EACH UNSUCCESSFUL OFFEROR IN CHRONOLOGICAL ORDER


Did the PCO notify the unsuccessful A-E firms of who was selected, and if a Small Business set-aside,  give the unsuccessful SB firms 5 business days to protest the A-E firms' SB status?
FAR 15.503; 19,302(d)





Do the notices incorporate all information required by FAR?
FAR 15.503(a)(2) & (b)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

17
SUCCESSFUL PROPOSAL AND ALL CORRESPONDENCE WITH OFFEROR


Does the contractor's proposal contain information IAW FAR 15, Table 15-2, Instructions, when Cost or Pricing Data are required?
FAR 15.403-5





Does proposal include completed Reps and Certs?
FAR 15.204-5(a)





Are originals of proposal revisions referenced to in the PNM included in the file
Good Business Practice





Has the contractor provided a confirmation of negotiations?
Good Business Practice




19
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY


If $10M or more, does the RFP contain the provision entitled "Preaward On-Site Equal Opportunity Compliance Evaluation?
FAR 22.810(c)





If prime contract and/or first tier subcontract is $10 million or more, has a preaward EEO clearance been obtained?
FAR 22.805(a)




26
TECHNICAL EVALUATION MEMO COVERING EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS


Does the file contain a complete technical evaluation?
FAR 15.404-1(e) and 36.602-1




28
SMALL BUSINESS/SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS SUBCONTRACTING PLAN


Has contracting officer reviewed plan for adequacy and obtained advice and recommendations of SMC/BC and SBA/PCR?
FAR 19.705-4(d);

SMC FAST  Book 19.7




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


Were review comments resolved by the contracting officer or, in the event recommendations cannot be followed, has the contracting officer documented the file setting forth rationale for the approved plan?
FAR 19.705-4







If subcontracting possibilities exist, has a positive small business/small disadvantaged business goal of at least 5% of all subcontracting dollars been negotiated for the basic contract?
DFARS 219.705-4(d)





If no subcontracting possibilities exist, does the file include a contracting officer determination approved at a level above the contracting officer?
FAR 19.705-2(c)






If  plan includes an SDB goal of less than 5%, has the file been documented and approved two levels above the contracting officer? 
DFARS 219.705-4(d)




31
SBA CERTIFICAT OF COMPETENCY?


Does the file contain an SBA COC?
FAR 19.601

FAR 4.803(a)(15)




32
PCO'S DETERMINATION OF CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY


After receipt of proposals, has contracting officer reviewed List of Parties Excluded From Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs ?
FAR 9.405(d)(1)





In absence of information clearly indicating the prospective contractor IS responsible, has contracting officer made a determination of nonresponsibility ?
FAR 9-103(b)

Also see FAC 97-21




37
MEMO REGARDING AVAILABILITY OF GFP


Is special tooling, or special test equipment (STE), or other existing GFP available to be provided?
FAR 45.102(c)

FAR 45.306, 45.307, 45.402(a)

SMC Fast Book, Part 45




Does the file reflect availability  of special tooling, or special test equipment, or other existing GFP, for the times set forth in the RFP?
FAR 45.306-1(a)

FAR 45.307-1

FAR 45. 402(a)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


If GFP is being transferred to this contract, has PCO justified requirement and approved?  
AFMCFARS 5345.190




If GFP is being transferred to this contract, does contract include required descriptive data ?
AFMCFARS 5345.190(a)




43
DEVIATIONS APPROVAL


Have all required approvals and clearances been obtained?
FAR 1.4

AFFARS 5301.402

AFMCFARS 1.403

SMC Fast Book 1.4






45
DCMA ANALYST AND/OR ACO PRICING COMMENTS


Does the file contain all required field pricing reports?  Do these reports agree with the origin and date of all field pricing reports cited in the PNM?
FAR 15.404-2(a)(1)

SMC FAST Book 15.4




If field pricing was waived, does file contain SMC/PKXF or the assigned price analyst coordination on the contracting officer memo indicating the reason for waiver?
DFARS 215.406-3

SMC Fast Book 15.4; para. 2.a.




46
AUDIT REPORTS


If audit support was requested in accordance with FAR, does the file contain originals of all audits performed, including subcontractor audits?
FAR 4.803(a)(20)

FAR 15.404-2(b)(2)

SMC FAST Book 15.4





Do these reports agree with origin/date of all audit reports cited in the PNM?
Good Business Practice




47
COPY OF CLEARANCE /PRENEGOTIATION SESSIONS


NOTE: To determine what contract actions are subject to the clearance process and to determine the value of contract actions, review: 
      AFFARS 5301.9005-1 and -2 plus Atch 5301-2

AFMCFARS 5301.90 and Atch 5301-90






TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


For actions not subject to the clearance process, has the PCO (or other management) approved all negotiation objectives prior to initiating negotiations?
FAR 15.404-4(c) & .406-1(b)

AFFARS 5315.406-1(b)

   AFFARS 5301.9005-3(d)(1)




For contract actions subject to the clearance process (see Atch 5301-2 of AFFARS & Atch 5301-90 of AFMCFARS), does the file contain a copy of the Request for Clearance (RFC)?
AFFARS 5301.9007 & Atch 5301-1.

AFMCFARS 5301.90

SMC FAST Book 1.90 

See Clearance Checklist on PKC Home Page





Does the RFC include all required items?
AFMCFARS 5301.9007

SMC/PKC Checklist





Is the clearance document prepared in the prescribed format?
Attachment 5301-1 of  AFFARS 





If clearance authority has been delegated, does approval document include the recommended language?
AFFARS 5301.9005-3(a)(3)




48
CERTIFICATE OF CURRENT COST OR PRICING DATA

When certified cost or pricing data are required, does file include signed/dated Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data (dated with same date as agreement on price or earlier date agreed to by parties)?

NOTE: After requesting cost or pricing data, if an exception is later found to apply, this certificate shall not be required.
FAR 15.403-4(b)(2)

FAR 15.406-2

AFMCFARS 5315.406-2




50
PRICE NEGOTIATION MEMORANDUM


Does file include documentation of the principal elements of the price negotiation that addresses all required subjects?
FARS 15.406-3

DFARS 215.406

DFARS 215.406-3

AFFARS 5315.406-3

AFMCFARS 5315.406-3

SMC FAST Book 15.4

See the AFMC PNM/PCM Guide at: http://www.afmc.wpafb.af.mil/organizations/HQ-AFMC/PK/pkp/pkpc/pnmpcm.htm




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


Does the PNM separately identify and discuss cost or pricing data submitted after the date of  agreement on price (but before contract award) and (1) any resulting price adjustments, (2) state specifically that the Government relied on the contractor’s summary impact statement and (3) state whether or not, and to what extent, the data was audited or reviewed. 
AFMCFARS 5315.406







Is the preliminary PNM signed by the buyer, PCO and price analyst (if "full pricing participation" was obtained)?
AFFARS 5301.9008 & sups;

AFMCFARS 5315.406-3; 







Is the PNM marked "For Official Use Only" on all pages?
AFFARS 5315.406-3(a)





Is a properly completed PNM checklist in the file prepared and signed by the supervisor of the PNM preparer?
FAR 15.406-3

SMC FAST Book




Does PNM include discussion regarding differences between the auditor's recommend amounts and the approved objective?
FAR 15.406-3(a)(8)

DFARS 215.406-3







Does the negotiated fee on cost reimbursement items comply with statutory limitations on fee:   6% A-E,  (6% of construction project cost)?
FAR 15.404-4(c)(4)(i)







Do the escalation factors for labor rates comply with the current AFMC policy?
See SMC/PKXF for guidance





If the A-E contract SOW has some tasks subject to the 6% limitation and some not applicable, has the fee been segregated/identified for each type within the contact?
DFARS 236.606-70(c) 







If you have a modification to an existing A-E contract, does the new total contract fee or price stay within approved funding limitations for specific projects which are subject to the 6% limitation?
DFARS 236.606-70(a)&(b)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


Does the PNM indicate the PCO addressed computer-assisted design and subcontracting during the negotiations?
FAR 36.606(d)&(e)





If a contract cannot be negotiated with the top ranked firm on the selection list, did the PCO request a written final proposal revision, notify the firm negotiations are terminated, go on to the next highest ranked firm, obtain a proposal and negotiate?
FAR 36.606(f)





Did the PCO have the Civil Engineer (CE), or the CE's designated representative as technical advisor, present during the negotiations?
Good Business Practice





For contract actions requiring a Contract Clearance, does the "final" PNM address any issues not addressed, or changes since preparation of the preliminary PNM?
AFFARS 5301.9008




52
REPORTS


If this is any negotiated contract action of $500,000 or more,  using a structured approach to profit analysis, and there is not adequate price competition, does the file contain a  DD Form 1547 for basic and each option? (NOTE: retain DD 1547 for options and submit at the time option exercise)
DFARS 215.404-70, 

DFARS 215.404-76

DFARS 215.406-3

DFARS 253.215-70

AFMCFARS 5315.404-70-90 






Is the DD Form 1547 accomplished using the latest version of required software (available from the AFMC/PKP Home Page under SOFTWARE SHELF).
AFMCFARS 5315.404-76-90(a)

See the OPR in PKXF





Does the DD 1547 agree with the PNM with respect to all dollar amounts shown, including negotiated amounts?
DFARS 215-404-70(c)




53
SECURITY REQUIREMENTS


Has the contracting officer ensured proper preparation of DD 254 (and approved same)?
FAR 4.403(b)(2) & (c)(1)

FAR 4.404

AFFARS f304.402-90

AFMCFARS 5304.691(c)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

      If contract may involve access to classified information, are required clauses included and referenced on the DD Form 254?



FAR 4.403(a)(2) & (b)(2)

FAR 4.404;  

AFFARS 5304.404-90

AFFARS 5315.204-5




54
EVIDENCE  OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS


(May be reflected as part of Tab 1) Does the file contain a certified PR or other evidence of fund availability for obligation?
FAR 4.803(a)(3)





If the A-E contract is an IDIQ type contract, will funds for orders placed against the contract be obligated within the year appropriated?
AFFARS 5336.691(g)




56
STAFF JUDGE ADVOCATE COORDINATION SHEET


Has there been legal review (AF Form 3059) of all contractual documents valued at $100,000 or greater?
AFFARS 5301.601-94(c

AFMCFARS 5301.601-94(b)(90), 

SMC FAST Book 1.6.6





If legal review was performed, does the file reflect compliance or resolution of  legal comments/conditions?
AFMCFARS 5301.601-94(b)(94)

Good Business Practice





If changes other than administrative corrections were made to the contract file subsequent to legal review (except to incorporate previous legal review comments), has the contract file been resubmitted for legal review?
AFFARS 5301.601-94

AFMCFARS 5301.601-94(95)

SMC FAST Book 1.6.6




57
INDIVIDUAL PROCUREMENT ACTION REPORT


Is the DD Form 350 properly completed?
DFARS 253.204-70; 

DFARS 204.670-2

AFMCFARS 5304.670-3
 
 
 

58
CORRESPONDENCE RE:  EXECUTION OF CONTRACTUAL DOCUMENT


If the contractor's transmittal letter reflects any conditions or exceptions to the contract, have they been resolved and the file resubmitted to legal?
AFMCFARS 5301.601-94(b)(95)

Good Business Practice




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

62
CONTRACTUAL DOCUMENT


Is a copy of the contractual document in file?
     FAR 4.803(a)(26)

     DFARS 204.802





Is the total IDIQ A-E contract price (fee) limited to $400,000 and an additional $400,000 for a one-year option?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.6.4

AFFARS 5336.691(b)





Is the IDIQ contract period less than one year (an option for one year may be included).
AFFARS 5336.691(f)





Are individual IDIQ orders limited to $299,000 in value?
AFFARS 5336.691(a)





Has the PCO used the Mandatory Standard Form 252, "Architect-Engineer Contract" to award a Fixed Price A-E contract?
FAR 36.702(a)




64
LOCAL REVIEW COMMITTEE SHEET


If required, has clearance review been performed?
AFFARS 5301.9005-1

AFFARS 5301.9007(a)

AFMCFARS 5301.9000






Does the file contain a "Request for Clearance” (RFC) signed by the Contracting Officer?
 AFFARS 5301.9007 & .9008

 




Have all review comments been properly resolved?
AFFARS 5301.9008





Has Contract Review Authority (CRA) provided a recommendation to Clearance Approval Authority (CAA)?
AFFARS 5301.9008(a)(1)







Does file contain evidence of internal review (e.g. completed checklist)?
Good Business Practices




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

66
COPY OF REPORT OF CONTRACT AWARD


If A-E services are estimated to cost $500,000 or more (excluding base comprehensive plans (BCP)), have the appropriate Committees of Congress been notified not less than 21 days before the initial obligation of funds?
DFARS 236-601

AFI 32-1023,  para 3.3.4





If the A-E contract fee (cost) exceeds $500,000 and Congress must be notified, is the CBD announcement of contract award made at least 2 weeks AFTER Congress is notified?
DFARS 236-601





EARLY EFFECTIVE DATE


If the effective date is other than the award date, but no earlier than the price agreement, has the contractor been advised in writing all costs incurred shall be at contractor's risk?  If funds are not yet available, has the CAA approved the early effective date?


AFMCFARS 5304.190





OZONE DEPLETING SUBSTANCES


 Does the file include the required statement or waiver?
DFARS 211. 271

AFFARS 5323.890-3 & -4





BASE SUPPORT

       Does file document agreement to provide support, certified by appropriate official?



AFMCFARS 5345.106-90

SMC FAST BOOK 45.1




FOREIGN DISCLOSURE

Has the requirements office provided an approved

AFMC Form 1027? 
AFMCFARS 5327.9001

(See OPR in SMC/AXP)




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A


ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

When applicable, has the required analysis been accomplished ?
DoDI 5000.2 Part 6 Section I

AFI 32-7061 para 2.1 







SOURCE SELECTION A&E


When acquiring  A-E services are expected to exceeds $25,000, an agency  shall provide an evaluation board to serve on formally constituted preselection and selection boards?


FAR 36.602-2(a)

AFI 32-1023, para 3.4.3







Does the file documentation reflect that technical members do not serve on both the preselection and the final selection boards for a particular A-E contract?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.5.6





If the A-E contract is to be an IDIQ type contract, are award procedures consistent with a regular type contract valued over the simplified acquisition threshold (SAT) i.e., synopsis, preselection and selection boards?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.7

AFFARS 5336.691(c)





Has the Selection Board used the mandatory selection criteria?
AFI 32-1023, para 3.5

FAR 36.602-1(a) 







When A-E fees exceed $25,000, did the Evaluation Board hold discussions with at least three of the most highly qualified firms before preparing the selection report which prioritizes the top 3 firms for the PCO?
FAR 36.602-3(c)&(d)

AFI 32-1023, para 3.4.3





If the total A-E fee is estimated to be less than the simplified acquisition threshold (SAT), was the "short" selection process used IAW FAR 36.602-5 in arriving at the final selection list of 3 top firms for the contracting officer to use for negotiations?
AFFARS 5336.602-5

AFI 32-1023, 3.5.4




TAB ITEM/QUESTION
REFERENCE
YES
NO
N/A

      Has approval of the A-E contractor selection been accomplished IAW AFI 32-1023?
    AFI 32-1023, para 3.6




_____________________________

Contracting Officer
1

